
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda.  Under the Brown Act, Council is 

prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda, but the matter may be referred to staff or to a 

subsequent meeting.  Each speaker will be limited to three continuous minutes, which may not be 

delegated.  These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate City Council action.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
Persons wishing to speak on any item on the agenda will be called at the time the agenda item is brought 

forward.  Persons wishing to speak on closed session items have a choice of doing so either immediately 

prior to the closed session or at the time for comments on items at the open session. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
Time shall be devoted to audience participation early on the agenda.   

 
 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
 Mayor Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian, Council 

Member Arizmendi, Council Member Capoccia, and 

Council Member Goss 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  AND 

INVOCATION/INSPIRATION 
 

 Council Member Gene Goss  

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  Vote of the Council to proceed with City business. 
 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES  Approval of City Council minutes from the regular 

meeting on July 24, 2018 and Special Council meeting   

on July 31, 2018. 

 

REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 

 City Attorney report from the closed session. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS  Council Member activities relating to City business. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  Regarding items not on the Agenda. 
 

PRESENTATIONS  Donations from Sierra Madre Rotary Club to Eagle 

Scout Ian Carson and Sierra Madre CERT   

AGENDA  

REGULAR MEETING 

SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL, 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY,  AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 

Tuesday, September 11, 2018  

 

6:30 pm  

 

City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard 

Sierra Madre,  California  91024 

 

  
 

 Denise Delmar, Mayor  

John Harabedian, Mayor Pro Tem 

Rachelle Arizmendi, Council Member 

John Capoccia, Council Member 

Gene Goss, Council Member 

 

Sue Spears, City Clerk  

Michael Amerio, City Treasurer 



ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. CONSENT  
 

  

 a) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 18-44 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution No. 18-44 for ratification of City Warrants 

in the  aggregate amount of $486,792.56, Library 

warrants in the aggregate amount of $13,869.75, and 

payroll transfer in the aggregate amount of $353,057.26 

for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 and 2019. 

 

 b) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 18-45 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution No. 18-45 for ratification of City Warrants 

in the  aggregate amount of $300,533.91, Library 

warrants in the aggregate amount of $1,878.56, and 

payroll transfer in the aggregate amount of $661,098.45 

for fiscal year ending June 30, 2018 and 2019. 

 

 c) CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 

18-48 ELECTING TO BE EXEMPT 

FROM THE STATE MANDATED 

CONGESTION MANAGEMENT 

PROGRAM  

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 18-48 electing to be exempt from the 

Congestion Management Program as requested by the 

Metropolitan Transportation Authority. 

 

 d) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 18-49 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 18-49 for approval of payment of City 

warrants in aggregate amount of $500,024.44; Library 

warrants in the aggregate amount of $228.87, and 

payroll transfer in the aggregate amount of $323,984.32  

for fiscal years ending June 2018 and June 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

  

2. CONSIDERATION OF APPLICATION FOR 

NOMINATION AS A LOCAL HISTORIC 

CULTURAL LANDMARK FOR THE 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 500 MARIPOSA 

AVENUE 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council open a Public 

Hearing, receive testimony and approve the request for 

Historic Landmark designation of the property located 

at 500 Mariposa Avenue. 

 

3. UPDATE ON SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 

ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 2020 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 

PLAN/SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES 

STRATEGY PROJECTIONS; 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 18-47 

AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF 

PLANNING COMMUNITY PRESERVATION 

TO SUBMIT REVISED LOCAL GROWTH 

FORECASTS TO THE SOUTHERN 

CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF 

GOVERNMENTS  

 Recommendation that the City Council open a Public 

Hearing, receive testimony and approve the revised 

growth forecast numbers and approve Resolution 18-47 

authorizing the Director of Planning and Community 

Preservation to submit revised local growth forecasts to 

the Southern California Association of Governments. 

 



 

 

 

 DISCUSSION 

 

  

4. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE 1402 

AMENDING TITLE 10 OF THE SIERRA 

MADRE MUNICIPAL CODE BY ADDING A 

DEFINITION TO SECTION 10.04.165 

“RECREATIONAL VEHICLE” AND 

AMENDING SECTION 10.24.310 “PARKING 

COMMERCIAL VEHICLES IN 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS” 

 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council read by title 

only for first reading, waiving further reading of 

Ordinance 1402  amending Title 10 (Vehicles and 

Traffic) of the Sierra Madre Municipal Code by 

amending Chapter 10.04 “Definitions” and amending 

Section 10.24.310 (Parking Commercial Vehicles in 

Residential Districts.) 

 

5. ENHANCED TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT 

 

 

 Recommendation that the City Council receive and file. 

 

6. CONSIDERATION OF AMENDING 

SMMC 13.24.060 AND SMMC 13.24.230 

TO INCLUDE ALL STATE REQUIRED 

PROHIBITED WATER USE 

RESTRICTIONS, EXPANDING 

PROHIBITED IRRIGATION HOURS, 

AND ALLOWING FOR THREE DAYS 

OF OUTDOOR WATERING AS A 

PERMANENT CONSERVATION 

PRACTICE 

 
 

 Recommendation that the City Council read by title 

only for first reading, waiving further reading of 

Ordinance 1403 amending Sierra Madre Municipal 

Code Section 13.24.060 (“Prohibited Uses Applicable 

to all Customers”) of Chapter 13.24 (“Mandatory Water 

Conservation Plan”) of Title 13 (“Public Services”) 

relating to the Mandatory Water Conservation Plan  

7. CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 18-50 

AMENDING THE CITY OF SIERRA 

MADRE COMPENSATION PLAN AND 

SALARY MATRIX 

 Recommendation that the City Council adopt 

Resolution 18-50 amending the City of Sierra Madre 

Compensation Plan and Salary Matrix. 

 
 

 

 

 

 
ACTION ITEMS 

Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such matters, 

including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item.   

 

AVAILABILITY OF AGENDA MATERIALS 

Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection on the City’s website at 

www.cityofsierramadre.com, and during normal business hours at City Hall, 232 W. Sierra Madre 

Blvd. and at the Sierra Madre Public Library, 440 W. Sierra Madre Blvd. 

 

LIVE BROADCASTS 

Regular City Council meetings are broadcasted live on Cable Channel 3 and rebroadcast on 

Wednesday and Saturday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

MEETING ASSISTANCE 

If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Manager’s office at 

(626) 355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/


 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council will adjourn to a Public Hearing at this same place on Tuesday, September 25, 2018. 



 

Page 1 of 9 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-24-2018 

 

Tuesday, July 24, 2018 - 6:30 pm 
Sierra Madre City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd., Sierra Madre, CA 91024 

  

 

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

Mayor Denise Delmar called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  City Clerk Sue Spears called the roll. 

 

Present: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

 

Absent: None  

 

Also Present: Gabe Engeland, City Manager 

Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney 

Marcie Medina, Assistant City Manager 

Donna Cayson, Police Captain 

Chris Cimino, Director of Public Works  

Vincent Gonzalez, Planning & Community Preservation Director 

Miguel Hernandez, Human Resources Manager 

Sofia Kownatzki, Intern 

Rebecca Silva-Barrón, Community Services Manager 

Christine Smart, Library Services Manager 

Sue Spears, City Clerk 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION/INSPIRATION 

 

Council Member Arizmendi led the Pledge of Allegiance and recognized that today is Aloha Shirt Day at 
City Hall.  In addition, she spoke about “mahalo” as the sacred Hawaiian word to express thanks and 
gratitude but also conveys a powerful spiritual understanding that is hinted at by the root words of the 
word. 
  
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if there were any changes to the agenda. 

 

City Manager Engeland reported that there was no closed session meeting this evening and that 

agenda item #3 is being removed from today’s agenda to be continued to a future meeting. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for a motion to approve the agenda as amended. 

 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES  
SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 



 

Page 2 of 9 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-24-2018 

 

 

Council Member Arizmendi moved to approve the agenda as amended. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian seconded the motion to approve the agenda as amended. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss  

Noes:      None 

Absent: None 

Abstain: None 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as amended was passed unanimously. 

 

REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

 

A. Mayor Denise Delmar congratulated Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian on the recent birth of his son, 
Joshua, on July 11, 2018, with mother and baby both doing well.  

 
B. Pro Tem John Harabedian did not make a report. 

 
C. Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi reported that (1) she attended the Community Services 

Commission meeting last week and they have been reviewing plans for the renovation of Kersting 
Court and (2) it is anticipated that the recommendations regarding Kersting Court will be brought to 
City Council soon. 

 
D. Council Member John Capoccia reported (1) he attended the LA County Board of Supervisors 

Meeting last week with the storm water tax as an agenda item and at which they voted to put it on 
the agenda in November 2018, (2) it passed by a vote of 4-1, with Supervisor Kathryn Barger 
voting no, (3) he spoke at the meeting regarding Sierra Madre’s opposition to the storm water tax, 
(4) most of the speakers seemed to be in favor of the storm water tax, (5) the issue is going to 
come up with the San Gabriel Council of Governments (SGCOG) soon and he will attend to try to 
convince them not to support the storm water tax, (6) at the last SGCOB meeting a presentation 
was made on Assembly Bill HR113 to mandate training in recognizing evidence of domestic 
violence and child abuse for personnel dealing with children/health & human services, (7) 
additionally, there was a vote of 10 yes-3 no (7 abstentions) to oppose Proposition 6, which would  
repeal SB1 – the gas tax, (8) he abstained because the issue had not come before the Council, 
and (9) that Sierra Madre has benefitted from SB1, as noted in the repaving of many City streets. 

 
E. Council Member Gene Goss reported that (1) he and Council Member Capoccia attended the 

Chamber of Commerce Town Hall @ City Hall last night, which was well attended and the 
business community turned out, (2) City Manager Engeland and Staff were there and took a 
variety of questions regarding several areas, (3) discussion was good and event will be scheduled 
again next year, (4) he attended the Joint Powers Insurance Authority (JPIA) Annual Board of 
Directors Meeting (last Wednesday), which Sierra Madre is a member agency, (5) JPIA has 
determined that its members need more training in risk management and will be spending over 
$1M in risk management training, and (6) JPIA will be holding a risk management education forum 
on 9/19 - 21/18  in Carlsbad, CA and will underwrite the cost for City managers, employees, with 
City Councils invited as well. 

 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 9 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-24-2018 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS  
 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on items not on the agenda.  Seeing no one 

come forward, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment. 

 

1. AGENDA ACTION ITEM:  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 City Manager Engeland gave the following reports under the Consent Calendar: 
 

a) NOTICE OF COMPLETION FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018 STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT -  

Recommendation that the City Council accept the completed work for the Fiscal Year 2017-

2018 Street Improvement Project and direct staff to file a Notice of Completion with the Los 

Angeles County Clerk/Recorder. 

 

b) FY 2018-2019 BLANKET PURCHASE ORDERS FOR VENDORS IN EXCESS OF $45,000 - 

Recommendation that the City Council approve the issuance of blanket purchase orders for 

vendors in excess of $45,000 for Fiscal Year 2018-2019. 

 

c) GRANULAR ACTIVATED CARBON REPLACEMENT - Recommendation that that the City 

Council award a contract in the amount of $122,000 to Carbon Activated Corporation for the 

replacement of virgin carbon in the City’s granulated treatment vessels. 

 

d) RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR WATER MAIN 
REPLACEMENTS AT VARIOUS CITY LOCATIONS AND DIRECT TO CITY STAFF TO SEEK 
CONSTRUCTION BIDS - Recommendation that the City Council approve plans and 
specifications for the replacement of water mains at various City locations, and direct staff to 
advertise the project for bids; recommendation that the City Council approve a change in the 
order authorizing OnWard Engineers to design an alternate bid schedule and specifications for 
the installation of C-900 PVC pipe in the amount not to exceed $6,480.00 
 

e) ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 18-39 OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA 
MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS - Recommendation that the City Council approve 
Resolution 18-39 for approval of payment of City warrants in aggregate amount of $598,594.82; 
Library warrants in the aggregate amount of $3,429.43, and payroll transfer in the aggregate 
amount of $317,014.75  for fiscal years ending June 2018 and June 2019. 

 
Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on items on the Consent 

Calendar. 

 

Council Members did not ask any questions. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on the Consent Calendar.  Seeing no one, 

Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion.  

 

Council Member Capoccia thanked Staff for the Street Improvement Project, which came in at 

$46,000 less than what was awarded and appreciated the way the Water Main Replacements were 

set up to squeeze in extra things if there are sufficient funds. 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Capoccia regarding the use of PVC pipe vs ductile 

iron, City Manager Engeland said that ductile iron comes out in a spiral so that if it cracks or gets a 

pin hole, it can be clamped and replaced, and the PVC comes out more linear, so a crack can 

spread sideways, which is harder to clamp.  However, he stated that (1) the way the PVC is 



 

Page 4 of 9 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-24-2018 

 

produced now it is less of an issue so City staff is confident of the lifespan and application, (2) they 

just want  to make sure that it works her before going ahead and replace everything with it, (3) PVC 

is cheaper with a longer life span, is more durable, and less susceptible to rust and the other issues 

that make the pipes break down with the water here. 

 

Council Member Capoccia commented that, because PVC is so much cheaper, even if cracks 

appeared and it cost the City more 50 years down the road, the net present value of that savings is 

tremendous.  City Manager Engeland responded that the City gets savings on both ends as well, so 

the City is going to put a pretty good application of it out with this bid, as the savings is anticipated 

to be about $300,000, which equates to three more blocks of main.  He said that City staff wants to 

see how PVC reacts in Sierra Madre soil first. 

 

Council Member Goss commented that he is cautious about PVC and agrees with the plan of 

beginning on a trial basis, with testing, but that as soon as we know we need to jump on it and reap 

the savings. 

 

City Manager Engeland responded that the City’s application of PVC has come a long way and that 

many cities use it exclusively, so PVC use has been more frequent and commonly applied.  He 

stated that until we get it in our soil and with our water chemistry, we are going to be cautious. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian made a motion to approve Consent Items 1a, 1b, 1c, 1d, and 1e as 

presented. 

 

Council Member Capoccia seconded the motion for approval. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to approve Consent Calendar Items 1a, 1b, 1c, 1d, and 1e as presented was approved 

unanimously. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for the approval of the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of July 10, 2018, 

and the Minutes of the Special Joint Meeting of the City Council and Library Board of Trustees of July 

10, 2018. 

 

Council Member Capoccia moved to approve the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of July 10, 

2018, and the Minutes of the Special Joint Meeting of the City Council and Library Board of Trustees of 

July 10, 2018.as presented. 

  

Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion for approval.  

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Member Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None  



 

Page 5 of 9 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-24-2018 

 

 

The motion to approve the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting of July 10, 2018, and the Minutes of 

the Special Joint Meeting of the City Council and Library Board of Trustees of July 10, 2018.as 

presented was passed unanimously. 

 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ITEMS: 

 

2. DOWNTOWN PEDESTRIAN SAFETY – Recommendation that the City Council authorize the 

installation of flashing crosswalk signs at four pedestrian crosswalks in the Downtown 

District.   

 

Director of Public Works Cimino gave a report on this item, with a Downtown area overview map, of 

the engineering study conducted to review potential traffic calming measures, pedestrian safety, 

and the mid-block crosswalks in the Downtown District.   

 

Staff is recommending the installation of solar-powered flashing crosswalk signs at four (4) 

uncontrolled locations as indicated below, utilizing the accounts of the Downtown Assessment 

Lighting Districts A and B.  The flashing cross walk signs consist of a sign in each direction flashing 

on both sides of the signs.  Once a pedestrian walks up and hits the button, the lights begin to flash, 

and a sound occurs for visually impaired pedestrians as well.  The flashing will be only when a 

pedestrian presses the button and last for the time it takes a person to cross.  

 

1. W. Sierra Madre Blvd. @ City Hall  

2. W. Sierra Madre Blvd. @ Kersting Court  

3. N. Baldwin Ave. @ Kersting Court  

4. S. Baldwin Ave. @ Post Office  

 

Additional recommendations were as follows: 

 

5. Remove two (2) uncontrolled crosswalks at (a) W. Sierra Madre Blvd. @ N. Hermosa Ave. 

and (b) W. Sierra Madre Blvd. @ Park Ave. 

6. Enhancing signage and striping per the CA MUTCD at five (5) uncontrolled locations. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item. 

 

In response to questions by Council Member Goss, Director Cimino said that speed really picks up 

after Lima into Downtown and that is why the flashing crosswalk sign @ City Hall is suggested, the 

City could install more, but at this time are just suggesting the installation of flashing crosswalk 

signs at four intersections.  He said that, with Council’s direction, the City could do more.  City 

Manager Engeland said the recommendations are based on a multitude of factors, including 

pedestrian crossing volume and accident history.  He also concurred that the City could install more 

flashing crosswalk signs than the four intersections but does not want to go less than the four 

recommended. 

 

Council Member Capoccia questioned the timing of when the surveys were conducted and that in 

the summer, Sundays, and events in the Park, the intersection at W. Sierra Madre Blvd. @ North 

Hermosa gets a lot of use. 

 

Director Cimino stated at the intersections of (a) W. Sierra Madre Blvd. @ Kersting Court and (b) 

Baldwin Ave. & Kersting Court, speed is not a factor, it is inattention with people looking around in 

Downtown and not paying attention to the crosswalks. 



 

Page 6 of 9 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-24-2018 

 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Capoccia, Director Cimino said that the cost for each 

crosswalk is approximately $6,500 for a set of two signs (flashing on both sides) with pedestals. 

 

City Manager Engeland stated that the funds would be coming from the Downtown Assessment 

Lighting Districts A and B and that there is a surplus.  He emphasized that, if Council wanted more 

flashing crosswalk signs, cost would not be a factor. 

 

Council Member Arizmendi also questioned the timing/day of the week of when the surveys at the 

various intersections were conducted. 

 

In response to a question by Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian regarding having flashing crosswalk signs 

by schools and agreed that we want the schools to pay for them, Director Cimino stated that once 

the City installs the Downtown flashing crosswalk signs, the plan is to talk to The Gooden School 

and Saint Rita’s School, as they are the two schools that are really affected.  He said that the Sierra 

Madre Middle School intersection at Highland Ave. is a controlled crosswalk, not an uncontrolled 

crosswalk.  

 

Mayor Delmar reported that she was shocked that no flashing crosswalk sign was recommended 

for W. Sierra Madre Blvd. @ Auburn Ave., as she was hit in that crosswalk and a lot of disabled 

people use that crosswalk, as well as the one @ Hermosa Ave. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on this item. 

 

 Pat Alcorn, Sierra Madre, (1) questioned the Engineer’s recommendation to remove the 

crosswalk at Sierra Madre Blvd. and North Hermosa and (2) said that it is a very hazardous 

intersection that is used frequently, especially during Memorial Park events.  

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to speak on this item.  Seeing no one, Mayor Delmar 

closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion. 

 

City Manager Engeland said that painted crosswalks give pedestrians a false feeling of safety and if 

they are included mid-block, where there is very little direction from the uniform traffic code with 

higher posted speeds, 

 

 that is more likely to cause an incident than not having a traffic crossing or pedestrian crossing at 

all. 

 

Discussion among City Council took place and it was agreed that pedestrian safety is a high 

priority, that there should be flashing crosswalk signs every crosswalk in the Downtown area to 

have consistency and to avoid confusion, and it does not cost that much. 

 

City Manager Engeland said that there is a surplus in the Downtown Lighting District funds sufficient 

to cover the cost of nine (9) flashing crosswalk signs - $6,500 x 9 = $58,500  

 

Council Member Capoccia made a motion to approve the purchase and installation of flashing light 

crossing signs at the following nine (9) intersections: 

 

1. W. Sierra Madre Blvd. @ City Hall 

2. W. Sierra Madre Blvd. @ North Hermosa Ave. 

3. W. Sierra Madre Blvd. @ South Hermosa Ave. 



 

Page 7 of 9 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-24-2018 

 

4. W. Sierra Madre Blvd. @ Auburn Ave. 

5. W. Sierra Madre Blvd. @ Windsor Lane 

6. W. Sierra Madre Blvd. @ Kersting Court 

7. N. Baldwin Ave. @ Kersting Court 

8. N. Baldwin Ave. @ E. Montecito Ave. 

9. S. Baldwin Ave. @ Post Office 

 

Council Member Goss seconded the motion to approve the purchase and installation of flashing 

light crossing signs at the nine (9) intersections listed above. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to approve the purchase and installation of flashing light crossing signs at the nine (9) 

intersections listed above was approved unanimously. 

 

3. DISCUSSION REGARDING TITLE 17, ZONING, CHAPTER 17.22.130 – RECORDATION 

REQUIRMENT FOR SECOND UNIT PERMIT -  Recommendation that the City Council provide 

staff with direction. 

 

4. PENSION RATE STABILIZATION PLAN - Recommendation that the City Council approve 

Resolution 18-40, a Resolution approving a fund balance policy for the General Fund; 

authorize the lump sum pre-payment to CalPERS for PERS Unfunded Accrued Liability and 

the budget amendments necessary to fund the payment; and authorize the establishment of 

a Pension Rate Stabilization (115) Trust Fund. 

 

City Manager Engeland gave a report on this item, including a detailed PowerPoint presentation 

titled “Pension Stabilization Plan – Pension Prepayment & 115 Investment Plan Creation,” 

regarding the City’s Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) CalPERS payment obligation.  A summary of 

which follows: 

 

a. Amortization Schedule Without Stabilization Plan 

 Current due CalPERS = $27.9M. 

 Annual payments exceed $1M from 18/19 through 35/36. 

 “Ability to Pay” exceeded in 17/18 through 35/36. 

 Payments will increase an additional 32% in the next five years. 

 Pension payments will equal more than 10% of General Fund expenditures in 20/21. 

 

b. CalPERS Stabilization Plan (Part 1 and Part 2) Benefits 

 Projected savings in 19/20 of $200,000 - $300,000. 

 Increased projected annual savings from 19/20 through 40/41. 

 “Ability to Pay” achieved in 19/20. 

 Reduction of total due to CalPERS from $27.9M to $15.9M (42%). 

 Savings total is $6.9M = 25% savings of total bill. 

 

c. CalPERS Stabilization Plan – Part 1 - $5M UAL Prepayment to CalPERS 

 $6.9M savings total. 



 

Page 8 of 9 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-24-2018 

 

 $12M reduction due to CalPERS from $27.9M to $15.9M (42.7% reduction). 

 Significant annual cash flow increase (estimated @ $250,000 in 19/20). 

 Short-term and long-term benefits for budget stabilization. 

 

d. CalPERS Stabilization Plan – Part 2 – $600,000 earmarked to Establish a 115 Investment 

Account 

 Flexible investment with greater return potential, 10.9% (1 year) 7.9% (5 year). 

 Funds available for use in emergencies. 

 Available for payment of UAL or normal CalPERS payments. 

 Long-term benefits for budget stabilization (solves the next CalPERS crisis). 

 

e. Sources of Funding for CalPERS Stabilization Plan Part 1 + Part 2 = $5,600,000 

 Apply current General Fund balance above 50% =     $1,800,000 

 Apply sale of SCE underground credits =                         628,000 

 Apply funding from close out of accounts/transfers =       800,000 

 Revise minimum GF balance from 50% to 25% =         2,500,000 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian asked a question regarding what would happen in the event that 

reserve levels are reduced to 25%, the City experiences a catastrophic disaster/emergency/fire, 

and the City does not have sufficient reserves to cover the related expenses.  City Manager 

Engeland said that, based on previous City incidents, Staff is comfortable with having the 25% 

reserve level and the additional funds available from the 115 Investment Account.  In addition, if 

costs go beyond that, the City can do inter-fund loans, interagency loans, or potential 

reimbursement in State or Federal declaration of emergency situations. 

 

 

 

 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on this item.  Seeing no one, Mayor Delmar 

closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion. 

 

Council Member Arizmendi made a motion to approve _________________. 

 

Council Member Goss seconded the motion for approval. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to approve _______________was approved unanimously. 

 

NEW ITEMS PLACED FOR FUTURE AGENDA: 

 

Mayor Delmar asked the members of the City Council if there are any new items for future meeting 

agendas. 



 

Page 9 of 9 
Sierra Madre City Council 

Regular Meeting Minutes 7-24-2018 

 

 

Per suggestion by Council Member Capoccia, a resolution regarding HR 113 is to be added to a future 

meeting agenda. 

 

Mayor Delmar reminded everyone that there will be a Special Meeting of the City Council on Tuesday, 

July 31, 2018, at 6:30 p.m. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 

The motion to adjourn was seconded by Council Member Arizmendi. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss. 

 Noes:      None 

 Absent:   None 

 Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to adjourn was passed unanimously. 

 

THIS SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING WAS ADJOURNED at 7:44 p.m. to a 

Regular Meeting to be held on Tuesday, September 11, 2018, in the Sierra Madre City Hall Council 

Chambers. 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

   Denise Delmar, Mayor 

 

Minutes taken and prepared by: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Sue Spears, City Clerk   

 



Page 1 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

Tuesday, July 31, 2018 – 6:30 pm 
Sierra Madre City Hall Council Chambers 

232 W. Sierra Madre Blvd., Sierra Madre, CA 91024 

  

 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

Mayor Denise Delmar called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m.  City Clerk Sue Spears called the roll. 

 

Present: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi (via teleconference from Placerville, CA), John Capoccia, and Gene Goss 

  

Absent: None  

 

Also Present: Gabe Engeland, City Manager 

Teresa Highsmith, City Attorney 

Laura Aguilar, Assistant City Clerk 

James Carlson, Management Analyst 

Chris Cimino, Director of Public Works  

Vincent Gonzalez, Planning & Community Preservation Director 

Miguel Hernandez, Human Resources Manager 

Sophia Kownatzi, Intern 

Joe Ortiz, Police Chief 

Jose Reynoso, Utility Services Director 

Sue Spears, City Clerk 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION/INSPIRATION 

 

Council Member Capoccia led the Pledge of Allegiance.  He followed by remembering long-time 
resident and Sierra Madre Rose Float Association member, Donna Sutcliffe, who passed away on 7-
22-18, and asked for a moment of silence in her memory.  Council Member Capoccia recalled that, for 
many years, Ms. Sutcliffe annually accompanied the Sierra Madre Rose Princesses to be introduced at 
City Council Meetings. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Mayor Delmar asked for a motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian moved to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

Council Member Goss seconded the motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

 

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING  

MINUTES  
SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL,  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY AND  

PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 



Page 2 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss  

Noes:      None 

Absent: None 

Abstain: None 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was passed unanimously. 

 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

 

1. Mayor Denise Delmar thanked Asst. City Clerk Laura Aguilar and her husband, Tony, for helping 
with today’s SM Staff BBQ, “Lunch with the Mayor,” at which she recognized and thanked City 
employees for their service. 

 
2. Pro Tem John Harabedian did not make a report. 

 
3. Council Member Rachelle Arizmendi did not make a report. 

 
4. Council Member John Capoccia did not make a report. 

 
5. Council Member Gene Goss did not make a report. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS  
 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on items not on the agenda.  Seeing no one 

come forward, Mayor Delmar closed Public Comment. 

 
AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 
 
1. DISCUSSION REGARDING TITLE 17, ZONING, CHAPTER 17.22.130 – RECORDATION 

REQUIREMENT FOR SECOND UNIT PERMIT – Recommendation that the City Council 

provide Staff with direction. 

 

Planning & Community Preservation Director Gonzalez gave a report on this item, including a 

PowerPoint presentation titled “Second Unit Recordation Requirement.”  Staff is requesting 

direction.  A summary of the PowerPoint follows: 

 

a. Covenant Requirements: 

 Covenant is a prerequisite to obtain a building permit. 

 Recorded covenant shall run with the land. 

 Owner occupancy required. 

 Restricts short-term rentals (not less than 30-days). 

 Authorizes the City to abate any violations. 

 Conformance with Building and Fire Codes. 

 

b. The Covenant Does Not: 

 Restrict units to affordable rent levels. 

 Require annual inspections (Zoning Ordinance Section 17.22.130 authorizes the City to 

make periodic inspections). 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

c. Neighboring City Survey re. Whether Covenant Required 

 In addition to Sierra Madre, the following cities currently require a covenant:  Arcadia, 

Claremont, Glendora, La Canada-Flintridge, Monrovia, Pasadena, San Dimas, and 

South Pasadena. 

 Only Glendora has no covenant required. 

 

d. Alternatives – Amend or Eliminate the Covenant  

 Determine if there is a need to retain the covenant as a provision of the second unit 

application process; or 

 Amend the covenant without reducing the ability of the City to ensure compliance with 

building and fire codes. 

 

e. Alternatives – Amend the Covenant  

 Modify the ordinance to eliminate the provision for periodic inspections. 

 Remove the covenant in its entirety and direct Staff to make a recommendation on short 

term rentals, which the covenant seeks to restrict. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item. 

 

In response to a question from Council Member Goss, Director Gonzalez responded that the 

covenant  restricts rentals less than 30-day, as well as notifies the LA County Assessor’s Office 

and future property owners that the second unit is a legal unit. 

 

City Attorney Highsmith stated that one of the most important aspect of the covenant is to restrict 

the property (a single legal parcel with two legal units) such that the owner must live in one of the 

units.  Furthermore, she said that (a) having that language written in the covenant provides notice 

to any prospective buyer in the future, (b) without that provision, you would be converting a single-

family zoned property into a multi-family lot, (c) it would change the character of the neighborhood 

over time, (d) that is one of the strongest reasons for keeping the covenant with at least the 

provision that the owner of the property must always live in either the primary or secondary unit of 

the property, and (e) the property cannot just be sold later and acquired by someone who wants to 

rent out both units, thus creating a multi-family use of a single-family parcel. 

 

In response to a question from Mayor Delmar, City Attorney Highsmith said that, presently, the 

ordinance does not allow short-term rentals (less than 30 days) anywhere in the City and that there 

is a separate provision in the ordinance that reiterates that for second unit rentals. 

 

In response to a question from Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian regarding the number of citizen 

complaints received regarding the covenant, Director Gonzalez said one, concerning the annual 

inspection provision.  City Attorney Highsmith added that the single complainant, in particular, 

objected to having the City’s code enforcement remedies spelled out in advance in the covenant 

as a potential violation of due process.  

 

In response to a question by Council Member Capoccia regarding what would happen to current 

covenant properties if the covenant is changed or amended, City Attorney Highsmith stated that it 

would be a City Council decision. 

 

In response to concerns by Council Member Capoccia regarding the owner residing on the 

property requirement, City Attorney Highsmith said that issue is to maintain the present zoning, a 

single-family zone.  Without the covenant (which permits a second unit), there would only be a 

single-family home allowed on the lot within the zone. Having the covenant in place, in addition to 



Page 4 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

the ordinance, it is a recognition that by allowing someone to have a 2nd unit, the City is not 

changing the zoning to the extent that it is a single-family zone.  If the owner were to sell the 

property or coverts the property to an investment property (renting out both units), the owner would 

be effectively be converting a parcel within a single-family zone to a multi-family use. 

 

In response to a question by Council Member Arizmendi whether there is a challenge in meeting 

the annual inspections, City Manager Engeland clarified that the term in the code is periodic 

inspection, not defined as annual inspection, the City has never conducted an inspection,  and 

would not conduct inspections unless there is a valid reason/complaint/something illegal.  City 

Attorney Highsmith highlighted that the periodic inspection provision is in the ordinance, not in the 

covenant.  In addition, she said that any inspection would require owner permission, and, without 

such permission, the City could not go onto the property without a warrant, which requires 

probable cause. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on this item. 

 

 Kathy Watson (and husband, Jim, in the audience), Sierra Madre, said that: (1) they have 

been advocating for some time that the recordation requirement be rescinded on 2nd units, 

(2) they believe that the requirements in this deed put up a huge barrier to someone who 

wants to build a 2nd unit,  (3) they are in the process of building a 2nd unit on their property 

(the current zoning is R3), (4) the covenant is a 13 page document and is excessive, (5) 

they are urging the Council to rescind the covenant, as the issues are addressed in the 

City’s Municipal Code, (6) the disclosure statement signed by sellers and the home 

inspection would be sufficient notice to prospective buyers, and (7) they believe the 

covenant is unnecessary, overreaching, and unfair. 

 

 Peggy Beauregard, Sierra Madre, said that, in the event she had to move due failing health 

in the future, she has concerns as to whether the owner-occupied requirement would 

require her to sell her property, although she does not have a 2nd unit on her property.  

 

 Mary Carney, Sierra Madre, spoke about her positive experiences regarding inspections 

when she was previously a property manager in another city. 

 

 Joyce Christensen, Sierra Madre Realtor, asked the question “when you have a deed lien 

on your property and you change Code 17 in the City, would the deed take precedence 

over that code change?”  She also said that realtors warn clients about any deeds or 

covenants on the property and tell them to read everything they can as a buyer. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to speak on this item.  Seeing no one, Mayor 

Delmar closed Public Comment. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked City Attorney Highsmith to respond to Ms. Christensen’s question.  City 

Attorney Highsmith said that, anytime a covenant is recorded on a property, the covenant does 

need to be enforced unless there is a change in the law either at the State, Federal, or local level, 

depending on what the covenant says.  In addition, if the covenant became contradictory to a 

change in the local law, then the City would not enforce it and the local law would take precedent.  

Generally, a covenant is the property owner’s promise to do those things that the covenant 

obligates. 

 

Mayor Delmar brought the matter back to Council and posed that the Council can take no action 

tonight, keep the covenant as is but remove language in the zoning code regarding periodic 



Page 5 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

inspections, or remove the covenant in its entirety and direct Staff to make a recommendation on 

short-term rentals. 

 

Discussion took place, with Council Members Arizmendi, Capoccia, and Goss expressing their 

agreement with rescinding the covenant, but that there is a need to have further discussion on 

short-term rentals at a later date. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian articulated his support of keeping the covenant and removing the 

inspection language from the ordinance as follows:  (1) when changing an ordinance that a 

previous Council has put in place, the burden is on the person trying to change it to present a valid 

case as to why it should be changed, (2) only one person has filed a complaint and the issue 

related to the periodic inspection language in the ordinance, which is not in the covenant, (3) from 

a policy stand point, you do not necessarily want to be in the lone minority city when seven of the 

eight other surveyed cities have the covenant requirement, the recordation, (4) the covenant is a 4-

page document, not a 13-page document, as stated during Public Comment, (5) an important 

provision in the covenant relates to situations should the City ever be sued based on this covenant 

in that there is a “prevailing party provision,” which says that the City gets its attorney’s fees back, 

which makes someone really question whether they want to sue the City over something like this in 

the first place, (6) the covenant is not really changing anything, it is just stating the state of the law, 

i.e. memorializing the state law, (7) notice is a big thing under the law and the covenant provides 

that notice to potential buyers, (8) the covenant protects the City, 8 out of 9 cities do this, it is not 

burdensome or overreaching, there is nothing in here that is anything but the law, it is just restating 

the law, and it is giving notice, and (9) has not heard a compelling reason why the covenant should 

be removed. 

 

Mayor Delmar agreed with Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian and voiced that Council is mixing up 

documents and language that is in the City’s ordinance with language that is not necessarily in the 

covenant. 

 

Council Member Capoccia said that the requirement that the owner live in one of the units is harsh, 

such that, if a person becomes debilitated and has to live somewhere else, they would be forced to 

sell the property.  Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian responded that (1) there is no requirement to sell 

the property if the owner can no longer live on the property, (2) they can still rent out one of the 

units, but not both, and (3) they just  cannot turn the property into, effectively, a multi-family 

property by renting both the main house and the second unit. 

 

Council Member Goss stated his reasons for favoring the removal of the covenant as follows: (1) 

the City’s interests are covered if we did not have the covenant, (2) there are a number of property 

owners who have the potential for a second unit and would like to consider doing it, (3) the 

covenant is an roadblock and/or disincentive to do so that does not send the right message, (4) 

building and development should be reasonable, and (5) we want to give people the capacity to 

develop their businesses on their property with a minimal amount of reasonable regulation.  He did 

ask for clarification regarding City recourse in the event of a lawsuit. 

 

Mayor Delmar highlighted that the reasons why, in recent years, regulations and ordinances have 

been put in place are usually the result of a lawsuit, something has happened, or the State has 

mandated it.  She suggested that the covenant issue be brought back for further discussion at a 

later date and, for tonight, provide direction to the Staff to bring back an amendment to the zoning 

code with the inspection provision taken out of the zoning code. 

 



Page 6 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

Council Member Capoccia also asked for clarification regarding City recourse in the event of a 

lawsuit. City Manager Highsmith responded that having “the prevailing party provision” in the 

covenant cements the City’s entitlement in the event that there is a lawsuit regarding the property 

and the prevailing party does, in fact, receive their attorney’s fees.  In addition, she stated that, 

without “the prevailing party provision”  written into the covenant agreement, there would be no 

such right to the prevailing party receiving their attorney’s fees.  City Attorney Highsmith continued 

that the covenant actually benefits property owners in that, because the covenant is recorded, it is 

a public notice that the second unit is legal.  Furthermore, she said that, while it may be surprising, 

many people may have a second unit on their property that may or may not be recognized by their 

particular city’s Planning Department and this creates problems at the time of sale. 

 

Further discussion occurred.  Council Members agreed to provide Staff with the direction to come 

back with a change in the periodic inspection language of the ordinance, not the covenant.  

Discussion on the covenant was continued to a future date.    

 

Mayor Delmar differentiated between the covenant, which protects the City and only pertains to the 

second units, and the zoning ordinance which pertains to second units as well as other building 

permits.   

 

2. DISCUSSION – CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 18-42 IN SUPPORT OF CALIFORNIA 

HOUSE RESOLUTION (HR) 113 KNOWN AS “PIQUI’S RESOLUTION” – Recommendation 

that the City Council Provide staff with direction. 

 

City Intern Kownatzki gave a report on Resolution 18-42 (Piqui’s Resolution), which is in support of 

HR 133, that resolves by the Assembly, that all court-related professionals should be trauma-

informed and trained in recognizing, evaluating, and understanding evidence and the impacts of 

domestic violence, and child abuse.  In the written report analysis, it states that “Piqui’s Resolution, 

HR113, was introduced on 6-13-18 in response to the death of five-year-old Aramazd “Piqui” 

Andressian, Jr., who was murdered (during the first week of custody) by his father who was 

granted joint custody of the child, despite the mother’s allegations of domestic violence repeatedly 

made to law enforcement and/or the court.  

 

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item. 

 

Council Member Capoccia spoke about the compelling testimony made (at the last San Gabriel 

Council of Governments Meeting) by the mother of Aramazd “Piqui” Andressian, Jr., in which she 

expressed great sadness, grief and her willingness to fight so that someone else’s child is not 

murdered the way her son was.  He said that this resolution makes a lot of sense, should be 

supported, and that child safety should come first. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on this item.  Seeing no one, Mayor 

Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion. 

 

It was agreed by the entire Council to support the resolution.  Mayor Delmar read out loud the 

entire Resolution 18-42 as written, as it is very important and all cities in the San Gabriel Valley 

and across the state are bringing this forth to the CA State Assembly. 

 

Council Member Capoccia made a motion to adopt Resolution 18-42 as written.  

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian and Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion to adopt 

Resolution 18-42 as written.  



Page 7 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to adopt Resolution 18-42 as written was passed unanimously. 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARING – CONCLUSION OF PROPOSITION 218 PROCESS FOR WATER & SEWER 

RATE ADJUSTMENT AND ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 18-43 SETTING WATER & 

SEWER RATES FOR FISCAL YEARS 2018 – 2023 – Recommendation that the City Council 

read by title only and adopt Resolution No. 18-43 amending Section 13.08.020 of the Sierra 

Madre Municipal Code regarding sewer rates and adopting water and sewer rate schedules 

effective August 1, 2018. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened this matter for Public Hearing. 

 

Asst. City Clerk Aguilar gave a report on the results of the Proposition 218 Process, which the City 

Council initiated on June 12, 2018, and set July 31, 2018 as the date for the Public Hearing.  Per 

the written analysis, the water rate setting process was initiated on January 24, 2017, when the 

City Council directed staff to seek a professional services proposal from Raftelis Financial 

Consultants, Inc. (RFC) for an update to the City’s current water and sewer rate structure.  Staff is 

recommending that the City Council read by title only and adopt Resolution No. 18-43 setting water 

and sewer rate schedules effective August 1, 2018. 

 

City Manager Engeland reported that approximately 4,800 ballots were mailed out (more than 

required) and that about 2,000 total protests would be required for it to be considered a Majority 

Protest (valid protests from 50% + 1 of the affected parcels).  The tabulation of protests was set 

and conducted today @9:30 am by City Clerk Spears and Asst. City Clerk Aguilar, who reviewed 

and counted the protest ballots received.  Asst. City Clerk Aguilar stated that additional protest 

ballots had been received after this morning’s tabulation. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone in the audience would like to turn in a protest ballot and a ballot 

was turned submitted.  City Manager Engeland requested that Asst. City Clerk Aguilar be provided 

time during Public Comment to count any protest ballots received after the initial tabulation this 

morning. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the Public Hearing on this item for Public Comment. 

 

 Scott Oliver, Sierra Madre, said that (1) he was mandated to have fire sprinklers installed 

when he built his house in 1999, (2) at that time, he was required to have a 1½” water 

meter that will supply the home needs at reasonable peak times, including in the event of a 

fire, (3) he did not consider this as an issue at the time, as water was cheap and meter fees 

were reasonable, (4) his neighbor with a ¾” meter pays a lesser meter fee and he does not 

understand why, (5) he believes that the City has an” incurable defect” when it comes to its 

water purchasing power, (6) he asserted that the City cannot join the Metropolitan Water 

District (MWD) and has no access to reasonable water, (7) water rates are already 

exorbitant and they are going to get a lot worse, and (8) the proposed water rates are 

grossly unfair.  

 



Page 8 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

 Raymond Erler, Sierra Madre, said that (1) he is not objecting to the proposed 

infrastructure charges, (2) he has read the water and sewer rate study and understands the 

resulting amount of revenue to be generated as reasonable, as it seems to anticipate costs, 

both variable and fixed, (3) while he has no objection to the rates, he has an objection to 

the way that the costs are allocated based on each individual parcel, (4) he objects to 

higher meter charges based on meter size, as he has a 1½” meter, and (5) he urges the 

Council to rescind the criteria used regarding the meter size charge.  

 

 Yvette Del Corazon, Sierra Madre, said that (1) she is opposed to the water increase, (2) 

the proposed Tier 2 water rate is going to cost her more, (2) she thinks that many people 

do not understand the proposed water rates, and (3) asked for clarification as to whether 

the City is using remote water meter reading in the Canyon.   

 

 Allen Skiff, Sierra Madre, said that (1) he has read the water rate study and understands 

most of it, (2) he appreciates that Sierra Madre produced water (Tier 1) is charged at a 

much lower rate, (3) he does not understand the rational for the Variable Charge Tier 2 – 

Single Family @ $4.23, as compared to the Variable Charge Multi-Family @ $3.73 and 

Non-Residential @ $3.71, (4) he questions using meter size as the basis to determine the 

fixed service charge and the infrastructure charge, (5) asked whether the infrastructure 

charge is subject to the 10% Utility Tax, (6) he is requesting that the infrastructure fees 

have a separate line item so that we can keep track of those funds to ensure that they are 

being used for new lines, installations, repairs, etc., and (7) asked if there is a way to get 

credit for those months when the water used is less than the water conservation target 

towards months when the water used is over the water conservation target.  

 

 John Cassara, Sierra Madre, said that (1) he wants to receive information regarding the 

cubic foot price of water that the City has paid over the past three years from every water 

source, in the exact gallonage used, (2) he wants to compare those figures against the 

usage figures anticipated in 2018,  (3) he has previously come to City Hall to ask for this 

information and has received no response, (4) he does not understand why the City does 

not have a contract with the MWD or is getting its water from Mono Lake, which he asserts 

has a lot of water, and (5) he asked if the City is entitled to getting any water from Mono 

Lake and what is the basic cost in comparison to what they charge other cities. 

 

 John Fullinwider, Sierra Madre, said that (1) he is unaware of what the City has done with 

funds collected in the past, as he has not seen any evidence of the funds being used for 

infrastructure,  (2) his street has been torn up five times in the last four years because of 

water pipe breaks to fix, but not replace the water main,  (3) he does not have a high 

degree of confidence in the City’s ability to manage the funds, (4) he would like to see a list 

of projects to be done, along with a time-table/schedule, and (5) as a community, we 

should have a better understanding of what the City is going to do, how it is going to be 

managed, and why are these the “right” rates. 

 

Mayor Delmar expressed that she wanted the public to know that what Mr. Fullinwider said was not 

true and that the City has already previously published and made public an infrastructure projects 

list (water main replacements), by street/block, with a time-line/schedule, and the costs for each.  

She suggested to Mr. Fullinwider that he review the related information available on the City’s 

website, come to City Council meetings, and read the City notices published in the Mt. View News.  

Mayor Delmar requested that City Manager England mail to Mr. Fullinwider all of the infrastructure 

reports, minutes, and actions taken to notify the public about the water and sewer rate process. 

 



Page 9 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

 Rosalyn Evans, Sierra Madre, said that (1) asked if there is a way for residents to review 

the City’s financial budget, as she is relatively new to Sierra Madre (under two years) and 

(2) she has concerns regarding the Winter and Summer water allotment. 

 

Mayor Delmar informed Ms. Evans that the City’s budget is available for viewing on the City’s 

website. 

 

 Carston Bell, Sierra Madre, said that (1) he sees from tonight’s Public Comments that there 

is a huge misunderstanding and lack of clarify on how big this budget is, (2) there has not 

been enough time for people to understand the water rates and the logic behind them, and 

(3) he urges the Council to delay voting on the water/sewer rates tonight to give people an 

opportunity to understand them. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to speak on this item.  Seeing no one, Mayor 

Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion. 

 

Mayor Delmar listed issues brought up in Public Comments and City Manager Engeland provided 

the following responses: 

 

1. The meter charge – The City is happy to downsize any meter, if the homeowner provides 

the City with a written report from an engineer or architect that says that the home does not 

need the meter size that it is fitted for.  The City has previously processed meter 

downsizing based upon receipt of written engineer/architect reports. 

 

2. The reason the larger meter pays more - The essential difference is how much water 

capacity there is, how much can be used at any given time, not only with the peaking factor 

that was discussed, but regular usage.  The 1½” meter is able to produce 50 gallons per 

minute or more, whereas the ¾” or less meters are limited to 15 gallons per meter, which 

can peak higher.  The 1½” meter has both the capacity and a usage that is three times 

higher on a recurring basis.  That does not mean that the homeowner is using more water 

at the end of the month, it just means that their straw is bigger and that they can get water 

more quickly.  

 

3. Remote meter reading and the Canyon – Radio meter reading is operational in the Canyon, 

which means that the City can read those meters remotely.  Soon, radio meter reading will 

be utilized throughout Sierra Madre. 

 

4. Whether the infrastructure fee is going to be subject to the UUT percentage – The 

infrastructure charge will be assessed with the UUT tax. 

 

5. Whether water rates are seasonal – There are no seasonal water rates anymore, as they 

 were eliminated by Council a year ago following the “Water Forum”. 

 

6. Regarding the City’s Budget - The City Council recently adopted the City’s Budget for 

Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Fiscal Year, it is on the City’s website, and those having trouble 

finding the Budget on the website are encouraged to call the Finance Department for 

assistance.   

 

7. For documents on the 218 Process - People can go to cityofsierramadre.com/transparency.  

There is a column on the left-hand side that says “218 Process” where (after clicking) 

documents related to the 218 Process are readily available for public viewing, i.e. the 



Page 10 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

current comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study, the Water Master Plan, the previous 

Water Rate Study, and a host of other related information/documents. 

 

8. Regarding persons requesting City of Sierra Madre documents, Sierra Madre has a 

process and form by which any person can submit a written Public Records Act Request to 

receive copies of City of Sierra Madre documents.  

 

Additional Public Comment issues that City Manager Engeland addressed were as follows: 

 

1. Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) versus the San Gabriel Valley 

Municipal Water District (SGVMWD) – In 1959, Sierra Madre residents voted and approved 

that the City of Sierra Madre be a member of the San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water 

District (SGVMWD), which also includes the cities of Alhambra, Azusa, and Monterey Park 

as member cities.  At that time, Sierra Madre was able to locally produce 100% of its water 

demand so water was not imported (purchased).       

 

After the drought began, the State of California cut Sierra Madre’s adjudicated water rates 

(the prescribed right to the East Raymond Basin ground water) in half, such that Sierra 

Madre was unable to locally meet its water demand, and this created the need for Sierra 

Madre to import (purchase) water.  In 2013, without a way to get water from the SGVMWD 

(Sierra Madre’s water district), Sierra Madre signed a connection agreement with the 

SGVMWD, and that is how the City of Sierra Madre imports water.   

 

Sierra Madre imports its water through the SGVMWD at a rate that is about half the cost 

per acre-foot than what MWD cities pay.  Sierra Madre voters previously made a very smart 

move when they chose not to join the MWD, as Sierra Madre has access to the amount of 

water that it needs at a cheaper rate. 

 

Sierra Madre has access to 2,500 acre-feet of water per year through the SGVMWD.  

Sierra Madre currently produces 1,000 acre-feet of water per year locally and its total water  

demand is approximately 2,300 acre-feet. 

   

2. Regarding the infrastructure charge - The increase in the water rates is due to the condition 

of the City’s infrastructure, which is in critical failure.  The infrastructure charge is a line item 

on the bill so that ratepayers can see exactly what monies are being spent on 

infrastructure.  In this year’s budget (2018-2019), infrastructure spending is seven times 

more than was spent last year (2017-2018), which was almost triple from what was spent 

the year before that (2016-2017).  Sierra Madre has been making a massive investment in 

its water infrastructure. 

 

3. Regarding a credit if a residence uses less one month and more another month - (a) 

hypothetically, it may be possible, but the City does not have a process to do so at this 

time, (b) the City wants to get away from the allocation system all together because Sierra 

Madre’s local aquifer can only produce so much water, (c) instead of tracking monthly 

water use versus conservation target, Sierra Madre is evenly distributing what it can 

produce locally to everyone and there is a higher cost for water that is imported, and (d) the 

cost is not the same for multi-family properties, as multi-family properties have a blended 

rate (from Tier 1 and Tier 2).  

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian asked if it is legally defensible to tie water rates (or part of it) to a fixed 

fee (basically a meter fee).  City Attorney Highsmith responded that the short answer is yes, the 



Page 11 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

Water Rate Study goes into a great deal of detail regarding the breakdown of the various 

components, both the variable rates of the cost of the water and the fixed rates for the meter 

charges, as well as the sewer and infrastructure fees. 

 

Mayor Delmar asked to hear the final 218 Process tabulation.  Asst. City Clerk Aguilar reported 

that the tabulation of the protests that were filed by the deadline (up to the close of tonight’s Public 

Hearing) is as follows: 

 

 A total of 277 protests were received. 

 179 protested sewer rates. 

 225 protested water rates. 

 50 protests were disqualified for various reasons, i.e. duplicate protest, missing signature, 

missing APN number, missing utility account number, or missing APN & utility account 

number. 

 

Asst. City Clerk Aguilar declared that a “Majority Protest” does not exist and that Staff is 

recommending that the City Council read by title only and adopt Resolution 18-43 adopting water 

and sewer rate increases effective August 1, 2018. 

 

Mayor Delmar brought the matter back to Council for comments. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian made the following comments:  (1) appreciated the speakers coming 

forward, (2) one of the most difficult parts of government is effectively communicating with 

constituents, (3) throughout this process, the City Council and Staff did its best and worked very 

hard to get the information out to the public, (4) rates are going to be more expensive, but it is 

actually not that much if you look at the average user, (5) the City’s infrastructure has exceeded its 

lifespan and is in a real state of emergency, (6) these rates will address infrastructure such that, in 

5 years, 10 years, or 20 years from now, residents will not be burdened with the current issues with 

the infrastructure, (7) the proposed rates are a lot fairer, everyone gets the same allocation from 

the City’s pumped ground water (14 units or below) at the same rate, (8) the City is paying less for 

imported water than the MWD rate, and (9) the Water Rate Study was a good process and he 

stands behind it. 

 

Council Member Capoccia made the following comments:  (1) the problem is that prior Sierra 

Madre City Councils did not respond to the City’s infrastructure issues by charging more at the 

time and now the pipes are failing, (2) the pipes are not going to get fixed without money, (3) the 

infrastructure pipes must be fixed for future generations, (4) Sierra Madre cannot continue to allow 

20% of its water to flow back into the aquifer because of leaky pipes, (5) the pipes must be fixed, 

not just patched, (6) this Council is not going to kick the can down the road, we are going to fix the 

pipes, we need a way to pay for it, and the only way is for ratepayers to pay more for the 

water/sewer service,  (7) thanked the audience for coming to tonight’s meeting,  (8) he welcomes 

direct resident inquiries, but has not been contacted, (9) anyone with questions is welcome to call 

him at (626) 355-6407, “as we are neighbors”, and (10) City Staff is also very open to explaining 

the problems facing the City and the solutions. 

 

Council Member Goss made the following comments:  (1) thanked everyone for coming to the 

meeting, (2) the City Council conducts serious business at every meeting, yet very few people 

attend most meetings, (3) since City Manager Engeland was hired two years ago, there is a gung-

ho approach to meeting the City’s problems/challenges head-on, (4) we are making real progress 

in addressing Sierra Madre’s problems and this is another example, (5) he is not going to kick the 

can down the road, (6) we are thinking about the future, (7) it costs money to fix all those pipes,  



Page 12 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

then we need to resurface a lot of streets, which will also cost money, and there is no getting 

around it, (8) regarding water rates Sierra Madre can no longer get all of its water locally (the 

drought has changed that, (9) water experts have testified that the drought is more or less a 

permanent situation, so the City cannot rely solely on the water it produces locally at the cheap 

rate, (10) the purpose of the rate change is such that the cheap water that the City can pump 

locally is distributed to everyone equally @ about 14 units and, beyond that, we are all going to be 

buying water through SGVMWD, which is actually cheaper than we would be paying if Sierra 

Madre purchasing water from the MWD, (11) this is a reasonable thing to do, (12) anyone may 

Email him at any time @ ggoss@cityofsierramadre.com, (13) Council Members Capoccia and 

Goss are the City Council members on the City’s Water Subcommittee, and (14) the long-term 

outcomes of the new rates is good for Sierra Madre and that is why he supports them. 

 

Mayor Delmar made the following comments:  (1) thanked the audience for coming to the meeting, 

(2) some of the statements made by residents during tonight’s Public Comment are absolutely 

untrue, which is frustrating, (3) The City Council has worked very hard to make sure that accurate 

and complete information is out there, including talking to people, conducting the “Water Forum”, 

which resulted in many changes,  (4) from last year’s “Water Forum”, it was clear that the public 

was confused about the four tier water rates and the fairness of the  conservation targets, etc., (5) 

the City Council has spent a year working on this to make sure that the water rates are fair for the 

ratepayers and fair for the City, (6) all City of Sierra Madre documents are public, nothing is 

hidden, and people are more than welcome to review them, (7) residents are encouraged to look at 

the City Council Meeting Agendas, attend meetings, and ask questions, (8) this City Council 

agreed to tackle the infrastructure problems facing Sierra Madre, (9) the pipes are in serious 

jeopardy and must be fixed, and (10) the City of Sierra Madre has a current infrastructure project 

list, with a timeline, which did not exist 2-3 years ago.    

 

Mayor Delmar confirmed with Asst. City Clerk Aguilar that the number of valid protest ballots 

received did not constitute a “Majority Protest” and asked for a motion. 

 

Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 18-43 as written. 

 

Council Member Goss seconded the motion to adopt Resolution No. 18-43 as written. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to adopt Resolution No. 18-43 as written was passed unanimously. 

 

9. DISCUSSION OF ADOPTION OF URGENCY ORDINANCE 1400-U AMENDING SECTION 

13.24.140 OF THE SIERRA MADRE MUNICIPAL CODE BY DELETING SUBSECTION “A” AND 

SUBSECTION “B” REGARDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION OF MANDATORY WATER 

CONSERVATION – Recommendation that the City Council adopt Urgency Ordinance 1400-

U, an Ordinance amending Chapter 13.24 (Mandatory Water Conservation Plan) of the Sierra 

Madre Municipal Code to delete Subsection A (First Violation) and Subsection B (Second 

Violation) of Section 13.24.140, resulting in a revised Section 1324.140 (Failure to Comply – 

Penalties). 

 

mailto:ggoss@cityofsierramadre.com


Page 13 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

Utility Services Director Reynoso gave a report on this item.  Adopting Urgency Ordinance 1400-U 

would rescind all excess water penalties from the City Code.  Staff is recommending that the City 

Council adopt an urgency ordinance to immediately remove (rescind) sub-sections A and B of the 

Sierra Madre Municipal Code (SMMC) 13.24.140 (Failure to Comply – Penalties). 

 

Mayor Delmar asked if any Member of the Council had questions on this item. 

 

In response to a question from Council Member Goss, Director Reynoso said that the State 

requires that the City have a water conservation program, with some very detailed mandates, such 

as not watering after a measurable rain event, no longer watering turf in City medians, leaks must 

be repair within a specific time, etc., but that there are other areas where the City has flexibility.   

 

Director Reynoso explained that it is difficult to keep plants alive with watering only two days per 

week and it can be argued that watering only two days per week is essentially wasting water.  The 

goal of irrigating is to get the water to infiltrate the soil down into the roots, not to lose it to 

evaporation.  As a result, Staff is currently working on a proposed plan in which changing the hours 

of the day that watering is permitted (to reduce evaporation) would possibly allow watering on an 

additional day(s).  The result would be a more beneficial use of water and help residents maintain 

their landscape as well.    

 

City Manager Engeland expressed that Staff anticipates bringing to Council, in either September or 

October, a plan regarding amending the watering days of the week/hours allowed, the City’s 

current related regulations, and all of the water conservation issues in which the City has leeway. 

 

In response to a question from Council Member Capoccia regarding when the AMI system will be 

functional, Director Reynoso reported that signed agreements have been received, orders have 

been issued for the contractor to install the TGBS (Tower Gateway Base Stations, in the East end 

of Sierra Madre, 80% of the meters are installed and we are just waiting to install the radios and 

lids, after which the City can sync the AMI System with the City’s billing system.  It is expected that 

within the next six to eight months, at least ½ of the City will be fully functioning with the AMI 

system.  The goal with the West side of the City is to have complete AMI implementation by 6-30-

2019. 

 

Mayor Delmar opened the meeting for Public Comment on this item. 

 

 Mary Lou Kopka, Sierra Madre, asked whether residents are still restricted to watering two 

days per week and she was told yes.  

 

 John Cassara, Sierra Madre, said that (1) questioned that he is paying more for the pipe 

because he has a bigger property, (2) believes that the cost of the pipe should be 

distributed equally, and (3) he agrees that the water penalties should be eliminated.   

 

 Bill Taylor, Sierra Madre, said that (1) he believes that the water penalty monies collected 

are in violation of Prop. 218, (2) the money needs to be returned to ratepayers, (3) there is 

a small group of people that are going to ask the City for their money back, and (4) he has 

contacted an attorney to represent him in a lawsuit against the City of Sierra Madre.   

 

 Bill Pevsner, Sierra Madre, expressed that he is in favor of having the water penalties 

removed and thanked the City Council for considering it.   

 



Page 14 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

 Carston Bell, Sierra Madre, said that (1) it seems suspicious the way that past water 

penalties have been assessed, as he has paid $2,000 in water penalties in the last 1½ 

years and (2) the water penalty system is unfair and should be eliminated.   

 

Mayor Delmar asked if anyone else would like to speak on this item.  Seeing no one, Mayor 

Delmar closed Public Comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion. 

 

Discussion occurred and there was agreement to remove the water penalties at this time and is a 

subject to an urgency ordinance. 

 

City Attorney Highsmith clarified that the water penalties that are recommended to be eliminated 

are the penalties that are applied to using more water than the ratepayer’s conservation target and 

that prohibited uses of the water (an example is watering on the wrong day or time) are still subject 

to an administrative penalty, which is still in place.  A water administrative penalty does not appear 

as a line item on a water bill. 

 

In response to a question by Mayor Delmar regarding this ordinance’s designation as “urgency”, 

City Attorney Highsmith said that an urgency ordinance requires a 4/5 vote, the records must have 

findings as to why the ordinance is an “urgent matter.”  She also stated that, because the new 

water rates are going into effect tomorrow, taking an urgent action to remove the penalties would 

avoid confusion regarding the application of penalties to the City’s revised water and sewer rate 

structure and this is why the ordinance is drafted as an urgency ordinance. 

 

In response to a question from Mayor Delmar regarding conservation targets, City Manager 

Engeland stated that, when the new water rate schedule is implemented, the conservation targets 

will be eliminated.    

 

Council Member Capoccia made a motion to adopt Urgency Ordinance 1400-U as written.   

 

Council Member Arizmendi seconded the motion to adopt Urgency Ordinance 1400-U as written. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, and Council Members 

Rachelle Arizmendi, John Capoccia and Gene Goss 

Noes:      None 

Absent:   None 

Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to adopt Urgency Ordinance 1400-U as written was passed unanimously. 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 

 

Mayor Delmar asked for a motion to adjourn. 

 

Council Member Capoccia made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 

The motion to adjourn was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harabedian and Council Member Arizmendi. 

 

Ayes: Mayor Denise Delmar, Mayor Pro Tem John Harabedian, Council Members Rachelle 

Arizmendi, John Capoccia, and Gene Goss. 

 Noes:      None 

 Absent:   None 



Page 15 of 15 
Sierra Madre City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 7-31-2018 

 

 Abstain:   None 

 

The motion to adjourn was passed unanimously. 

 

THIS SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING WAS ADJOURNED at 9:08 p.m. to a 

Regular Meeting to be held on Tuesday, September 11, 2018, in the Sierra Madre City Hall Council 

Chambers. 

 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

   Denise Delmar, Mayor 

 

Minutes taken and prepared by: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Sue Spears, City Clerk   

 
















































































































































































































































































































































	7-24-2018 Agenda
	Council Minutes - 7-24-2018
	Council Minutes - 7-31-2018 - Special
	1A - RESOLUTION NUMBER 18.44 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS
	1B - RESOLUTION NUMBER 18.45 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS
	1C - ADOPT RESOLUTION ELECTING TO BE EXEMPT FROM THE STATE MANDATED CONGESTION MANAGEMENT PROGRAM
	1D - A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS
	2 - HISTORIC DESIGNATION . AN APPLICATION TO CONSIDER A NOMINATION AS A LOCAL HISTORIC CULTURAL LANDMARK FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 500 MARIPOSA AVE
	3 - UPDATE ON SCAG 2020 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN . SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES STRATEGY PROJECTIONS
	4 - FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE 1402 AMENDING TITLE 10 . VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC . OF THE SIERRA MADRE MUNICIPAL CODE
	5 - ENHANCED TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT
	6 - CONSIDERATION OF AMENDING SMMC 13.24.060 AND SMMC 13.24.230
	7 - CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 18-50 AMENDING THE CITY'S COMPENSATION PLAN AND SALARY MATRIX

